
Town of Belgrade 
Board of Selectpersons 

April 5, 2022 / 6:30 p.m. 
Belgrade Town Office 

990 Augusta Road 
 

This meeting will be conducted in person.  
The public may also view the meeting and participate online at 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984  
 

A G E N D A 
 
Call to order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Open meeting 

1. ELECTION OF SELECTBOARD CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR 
2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
3. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Approval of March 15, 2022, Selectboard minutes. 
4. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Appointments. 
1. Anne Wright – Appeals Board. 
2. Richard Greenwald – Addressing Officer. 
3. Laura Dunbar – Don C. Stevens Committee (reappointment).  
4. George Seel – Planning Board (reappointment).  
5. Richard Bourne – Board of Appeals (reappointment). 
6. Bruce Galouch – Transfer Station Committee (reappointment). 
7. Tom Daniels – Transfer Station Committee (reappointment).  
8. Rhaeto Pfister – Transfer Station Committee (reappointment).  
9.  Mary Vogel – Senior Resources Committee (reappointment).  
10. Tasha Gradie – Senior Resources Committee (reappointment).  
11.  Annual appointments of municipal officials and election workers. 

B. Discussion of RSU 18 proposed 2022 budget with Superintendent Carl Gartley. 
C. Discussion and consideration of June 14 warrant articles 

1. To reduce the number of Board of Parks and Recreation members.  
2. To join the Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MainePERS) for 

its full-time firefighters. 
D. Discussion and consideration of annual lease agreement with Friends of the 

Belgrade Public Library.  
E. Discussion and consideration of awarding bid for annual Tax Anticipation Note 

(TAN).  
F. Discussion and consideration of installation of Internet service at North 

Belgrade Community Center. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984


G. Discussion of Town Meeting election results.  
5. WARRANT 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A) – Personnel matter  



 

Town of Belgrade 
Board of Selectpersons 

March 15, 2022 / 6:30 p.m. 
Belgrade Town Office 

990 Augusta Road 
 

This meeting can be watched at 
https://youtu.be/TIfsZ2POq1Q 

 

M I N U T E S 
 
Selectboard members present: Melanie Jewell, Barbara Allen, Dan Newman, Carol 
Johnson. 

In-person attendees: Town Manager Anthony Wilson, Bruce Galouch, Sara Languet 

Remote attendees: Jay Bradshaw, Dick Bourne, Nicholas Alexander, Transfer Station 
Director Ken Scheno, Michael Barrett, Lenny Reich, Jack Sutton, Jordan Zoretic.  

Ms. Jewell called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
Ms. Johnson moved to open the meeting. Ms. Allen seconded. Motion approved 4-0. 
Selectperson Rick Damren was not present for the meeting. 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT. There was no public comment. 
2. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Approval of March 1, 2022, Selectboard minutes. Ms. Jewell moved approval of 
the minutes as presented. Ms. Johnson seconded. Motion approved 4-0.  

3. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Appointments. 

1. Jordan Zoretic – Appeals Board. Ms. Jewell moved approval. Ms. Allen 
seconded. Motion approved 4-0. 

2. Sara Languet – Budget Committee. Ms. Jewell moved approval. Ms. Allen 
seconded. Motion approved 4-0. 

B. Discussion and consideration of skid steer RFP. Mr. Newman suggested adding 
an alternate bid for a broom attachment, checking for a possible purchase 
through a state purchasing cooperative, and adding New Holland as a vendor to 
receive the RFP. The RFP will be posted March 21 if voters approve the funding 
for the purchase at Town Meeting. Ms. Jewell moved approval of the RFP. Ms. 
Johnson seconded. Motion approved 4-0. If bids exceed $59,000, the 
Selectboard will decide then how to fund the unanticipated costs. 

C. Discussion and consideration of board and committee attendance policy. The 
Board endorsed the proposed attendance policy but wants it to be part of a larger 
board/committee service policy that includes requirements for annual harassment 
training and other training as determined by the Selectboard, a minimum of 

https://youtu.be/TIfsZ2POq1Q


 
quarterly meetings, a workable camera for members to vote when participating in 
meetings remotely, and a process for removing members convicted of crimes 
and a determined time for posting agendas.  

D. Discussion and consideration of Lakes Committee bylaws. The Board generally 
endorsed the proposed bylaws but wanted to consider them in the context of the 
larger board/committee service policy to ensure the two documents are 
consistent. It suggested establishing a day (ex. first Wednesday of the month) for 
Lakes Committee meetings for consistency that will facilitate public participation.  

E. Discussion and consideration of Spirit of America nominees:  
1. Marylou and Alan Butterfield. Ms. Allen moved approval. Ms. Johnson 

seconded. Motion approved 4-0. 
2. Judy Hallowell. Ms. Jewell moved approval. Ms. Johnson seconded. Motion 

approved 4-0. 
3. Becky Seel. Ms. Jewell moved approval. Ms. Johnson seconded. Motion 

approved 4-0. 
4. Mary Vogel. Ms. Jewell moved approval. Ms. Johnson seconded. Motion 

approved 4-0. 
4. WARRANT. Ms. Allen moved approval of warrant no. 30 for $59,439.32. Ms. 

Johnson seconded. In response to a question from Mr. Newman, the town manager 
said the Town’s plow contractor is seeking reimbursement for fuel expenses above 
$4 per gallon beginning in September. Motion approved 4-0. 

5. TOWN MANAGER REPORT. The town manager reported he was elected to serve 
on the Kennebec County Budget Committee. In response to a request for direction 
from the Planning Board, the Selectboard said it wants the Planning Board to focus 
on regulations for commercial solar arrays (rather than residential arrays) that 
produce power for the electric grid. Additionally, Mr. Newman advocated for 200-foot 
wooded buffers, the most restrictive regulations possible, and a minimum size of 5.1 
megawatts to ensure solar farms can be fully taxed by the Town. The town manager 
said he will consult with the town’s attorney on the latter recommendation. The 
Board also decided to have its regularly scheduled meeting on April 5 with a light 
agenda as the town manager is away. 

 
Ms. Johnson moved to adjourn. Ms. Allen seconded. Motion approved 4-0. The 
meeting adjourned at 7:53 p.m. 
 



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: April 5, 2022 

Re: Appointments 

 

After advertising the vacancies on the Board of Appeals for at least two weeks, 
we received two applications. At your last meeting, you appointed Jordan Zoretic 
to one of the open seats. Following her appointment, we received the attached 
application from Anne Wright, a retired attorney from the Maine Municipal 
Association Health Trust. The members of the Appeals Board enthusiastically 
endorsed her application and recommend her appointment to you.  

As you may recall, the town manager along with Rescue Chief Travis Burton and 
Firefighter Danielle Bedard were previously appointed as the Town’s alternate 
addressing officers until a code enforcement officer was on board. Code 
Enforcement Officer Richard Greenwald is ready to assume the responsibility of 
the addressing officer.  
Attached are eight applications for reappointment to various Town 
committees and boards. Also attached is the list of annual appointment of 
Town officials and election workers.  

 





























Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: April 5, 2022 

Re: Board of Parks and Recreation membership 

 

The Board of Parks and Recreation has for some time had difficulty convening a 
quorum for its meetings. That is due in part to the BPR having 10 members plus 
two alternates. In 2002, the Town’s voters approved a warrant article to increase 
the size of the BPR from eight members and two alternates to its present 
configuration. Finding people to fill those 10 (or 12 slots) has been a challenge, 
which in turn has often prevented the BPR from having a six-member quorum.  

The March 28 meeting again failed to generate a quorum, with only four 
members attending. Had the board’s membership been seven members, the four 
attending members would have been adequate to conduct a meeting and 
transact business. The members present agreed that having seven members 
would make achieving a full board and gathering a quorum easier.  

Because the board is having trouble convening a quorum, there is no 
recommendation to present to you, other than the request of BPR Chair Linda 
Bacon that the Selectboard consider placing a warrant article before voters 
during the June 14 school election to reduce the size of the BPR to seven 
members. The warrant article must be approved 60 days in advance of the 
election.  

Ms. Bacon will attend the meeting to discuss this proposal with you.  

Town Clerk Mary Vogel offers the following wording for the article: “To see if the 
town will vote to decrease the size of the Board of Parks and Recreation 
Members from 10 members with 2 alternates to 7 members with 2 alternates; this 
article will replace article #56 of the 2002 town warrant.” 

She also advises that the Selectboard would have to formally vote to have a 
secret ballot referendum on June 14, 2022, and to set a date for a public hearing 
on the referendum question. She suggests doing that at the Selectboard’s April 
19 meeting. Ballots must be ready for absentee voting 30 days prior to Election 
Day.  



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: April 5, 2022 

Re: MainePERS 

 

Following Town Meeting, we began working to enroll in the Maine Public 
Employees Retirement System (MainePERS) so the Town’s full-time firefighters 
could participate. In doing so, we were told – for the first time – the legislative 
body must expressly approve participation in the program.  

MainePERS recommends you use this language as part of your motion:  

“I move to place on the June 14, 2022, ballot a warrant article to allow the Town 
of Belgrade to join the Maine Public Employees Retirement System as a 
Participating Local District effective July 1, 2022, and: 

• “To offer Special Plan 3C to its full-time firefighters and emergency 
medical services employees who work at least 40 hours per week, 52 
weeks per year.  

• “To exclude all other employees, including its elected/appointed officials, 
from participating in MainePERS. 

• “To allow its eligible employees who are currently employed by the Town 
on July 1, 2022, who elect to join MainePERS, to purchase credit for 5 
years of prior service upon the employee’s full payment of all associated 
costs. The Town will not participate in the purchase of prior service and so 
employees are responsible for paying the full liability associated with this 
service. 

• “To adopt the provisions of 5 M.R.S. §18252-C as enacted by PL 2021, 
Chapter 286 as allowed by MainePERS Rule Chapter 803 for its non-
participating employees with optional membership who previously 
declined to participate in MainePERS (“eligible employees”) and to comply 
with the following requirements: 

“Beginning in 2022, to annually offer eligible employees who have been 
employed for less than 5 years, and in 2022 eligible employees who had reached 
5 years of employment between November 1, 2021 and November 1, 2022, the 
opportunity to join MainePERS on a prospective basis during an open enrollment 
period from September 1 through November 1 and to provide MainePERS with 



documentation of each election made by eligible employees under this provision: 
and 

o “To withhold employee contributions for employees who join 
under this provision on an after-tax basis and to remit them to 
MainePERS.   

• “To authorize NAME, Town Manager or NAME, Selectboard Chair, to sign 
the agreement between the Town and Maine Public Employees 
Retirement System. 

“Motion approved as written.” 

Additionally, MainePERS suggested this language for the ballot:  

“To see if the Town of Belgrade will vote to join the Maine Public Employees 
Retirement System (MainePERS) as a Participating Local District effective July 
1, 2022, for its full-time firefighters under Special Plan 3C with the limited period 
open enrollment provision. All other employees are excluded from participation at 
this time. The Town will allow firefighters who join to purchase credit for past 
employment with the Town and authorizes NAME, Town Manager or NAME, 
Select Board Chair to sign the agreement between the Town and Maine Public 
Employees Retirement System.” 

Note the Board will need to decide and state in each whether the town manager 
or the Selectboard chair will execute the agreement. 

Fire Chief Dan MacKenzie will be in attendance to answer any questions you 
may have.  



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: April 5, 2022 

Re: Library lease 

 

Attached is the proposed lease agreement for the use of the Friends of the 
Belgrade Public Library’s facility at 124 Depot Road to house the Town’s library. 
The agreement has not been changed from what was approved in 2021.  













Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: April 5, 2021 

Re: Tax anticipation note bids 

 

We received three bids for our annual tax anticipation note (TAN). The low bid is 
1.90% submitted by Bangor Savings Bank. (Androscoggin Bank bid 2.11%, and 
Camden National Bank 2.19%.) 

We plan a different approach this year. Rather than receiving the full $2 million in 
a lump sum, we will draw from the funds only as needed. This will serve two 
purposes. One, it will be a test as to whether the Town needs a TAN moving 
forward, or whether the fund balance is healthy enough to safely make that 
unnecessary. Two, it will reduce the interest costs we pay. That is, rather than 
paying interest on the full $2 million, we will pay for only the amount we draw 
from that. As in years past, we will seek to repay what we draw from the funds as 
quickly as possible to further reduce interest costs.  

Attached are the bids.  

We recommend awarding the bid to Bangor Savings.  

Also attached is the proposed bond vote drafted by our legal counsel for the 
record. Per Bernstein Shur’s instructions, the motion should read: “I move that 
the proposed vote regarding the issuance of a tax anticipation note be adopted 
as presented.” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

PROPOSED VOTE 

 

 

VOTED by the Select Board for the Town of Belgrade, Maine as follows: 

 

VOTED: (1) That under and pursuant to Title 30-A, Section 5771 of the 
Maine Revised Statutes, as amended and supplemented, there be 
and hereby is authorized the issuance of $2,000,000 principal amount 
of Tax Anticipation Note of the Town in anticipation of the receipt of 
taxes for the municipal fiscal year which commenced January 1, 2022, 
and ends December 31, 2022. 

 

 (2) Said Note shall be dated April 11, 2022, shall mature on                 
December 16, 2022, shall be signed by the Treasurer and 
countersigned by the Chair of the Select Board, shall bear interest at 
the rate of 1.90% per annum, shall be payable at 24 Hamlin Way in 
Bangor, Maine, and otherwise be in such form and bear such details 
as the signers may determine. 

 

 (3) That said Note is hereby sold and awarded to Bangor Savings 
Bank. 

 

 (4) Said Note is hereby designated a qualified tax-exempt 
obligation of the Town for the 2022 calendar year pursuant to the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986. 

 

 (5) That all things heretofore done and all action heretofore taken 
by the Town, its municipal officers and agents in the authorization of 
said Note are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed and the 
Treasurer and Chair are each hereby authorized to take any and all 
action necessary or convenient to carry out the provisions of this 
voting, including delivering said Note against payment therefor. 

 

 



 
 

March 31st, 2022 
 
 
Town of Belgrade 
Anthony Wilson, Town Manager  
990 Augusta Road 
Belgrade, Maine 04917 
 
RE: 2022 Tax Anticipation Note - $2,000,000.00 

Dear Mr. Wilson: 

Bangor Savings Bank is pleased to submit our proposal for a tax anticipation note in the amount of 
$2,000,000.00. The loan is subject to the following terms: 

 
1) The proposed fixed interest rate of 1.90% on an as needed basis. 

 
2) One Note, representing the full amount of the obligation, to be issued and available for full or partial 

advancement as requested on or about April 11th, 2022 
 
 

3) Interest is to be calculated based on a 365-day year. The total interest cost will be $25,506.85 (this 
amount is subject to change based on the closing date and based on full advancement at closing). 
 

4) All interest and principal will be paid no later than December 16, 2022. The Note may be prepaid at 
any time without penalty. 
 

5) The issue of the Note is to be accompanied by an unqualified legal opinion of recognized Bond Counsel, 
that the Note has been duly authorized by the Town, is a legal and valid obligation of the Town, interest 
is exempt from taxation under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; and has been 
designated as a “qualified tax-exempt obligation” of the Town. The cost of Bond Counsel will be borne 
by the Town. 

 
The commitment is subject to change if not accepted by April 11th, 2022 and is subject to withdrawal, if 
there is discovered prior to loan disbursement, any adverse information relating to the Town’s financial 
condition. 

 
Please forward any correspondence relative to this request to my attention: 

 
Julie Cote 
Treasury & Payment Services 
Bangor Savings Bank 
24 Hamlin Way 
Bangor ME 04401 
Email: julie.cote@bangor.com or Fax: 207.941.2796 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to assist with the Town’s financial requirements and look forward to working 
with you. 

 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Julie Cote, Vice President  
Treasury & Payment Services 

mailto:julie.cote@bangor.com






 
 

 
 
March 31st, 2022 
 
Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 
Town of Belgrade 
990 Augusta Road 
Belgrade, ME 04917 
“Bid for Tax Anticipation Note” 
 
Dear Mr. Wilson: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to bid on your request for tax-exempt municipal funds for the Town of 
Belgrade in an amount not to exceed Two Million and 00/100 Dollars ($2,000,000), for the purpose of a 
Tax Anticipation Note.  This bid is submitted as per your request for proposal specifications.  Camden 
National Bank (the "Bank") is pleased to offer this Note subject to the following conditions: 
 
1)  ISSUER:  Town of Belgrade 
 
2)  ISSUE DATE:  The note will be issued on or about Monday, April 11, 2022 
 
3)  DENOMINATION OF NOTES:  One note in an amount not to exceed $2,000,000.00 will be issued on 
“as-needed” basis. 
 
4)  MATURITY DATE:   December 16, 2022 
 
5)  INTEREST RATE:  2.19% per annum, computed on the basis of the actual number of days outstanding 
based on a 360 day year.  Interest expense is calculated to be $30,295.00 assuming full disbursement on 
April 11, 2022. 
 
6) REPAYMENT TERMS:  Principal PLUS interest on the note shall be payable on the maturity date of the 
note.  .   
 
7)  PREPAYMENT PROVISION AND FEES:  The note may be prepaid at any time without penalty. The 
Bank assesses no fees associated with the loan closing.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Belgrade 
Page 2 
March 31st, 2022 
 
 
8)  LEGAL OPINION:  This bid is subject to a legal opinion from bond counsel acceptable to the Bank, the 
cost of which will be borne by the Town of Belgrade.  The opinion must include a statement that the note 
represents a valid and binding obligation of the issuer and further that the note is a "bank qualified and 
designated tax exempt obligation" for the purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended.  The issuer's counsel will be responsible for preparing the required loan documents 
and filing the necessary forms with the Internal Revenue Service. 
 
9)  ADDITIONAL PROVISION:  It is a condition of this commitment that none of the proceeds shall be used 
or invested in any manner such as to result in the loss of exemption from Federal income taxation of 
interest earned on this obligation. If this condition is violated by the issuer, the actions of any of its officers, 
agents, or employees, said issuer shall be liable to any holder of this obligation for all income tax liability 
incurred by said holder as a result of said condition broken, and in addition, all obligations under this Note 
shall become immediately due and payable at the option of the holder.  All acts, conditions and formalities 
essential to the validity of said obligation have been performed and compiled with as required by law, and 
the total indebtedness of the issuer is within the legal debt limit prescribed by law. 
                                                
10)  CONFIRMATIONS:  The Town of Belgrade must confirm in writing that: 
-The Town of Belgrade will comply with all of the Tax Reform Act of 1986, as amended, including all 
provisions relating to arbitrage and rebate. 
 
This commitment shall expire if it is not accepted in writing by April 7, 2022 and may be withdrawn if any 
adverse information relating to the issuer's affairs is discovered prior to closing. 
 
Should you have any questions regarding this proposal or require additional information, please contact 
me at 207-706-6561 or by email at cday@camdennational.com.  Thank you for considering Camden 
National Bank for the Town’s financial needs.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Craig Day 
Vice President 
 





Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Anthony Wilson, Town Manager 

Date: April 5, 2021 

Re: Election results 

 

Official results from the March 19 Town Meeting election are as follows:  

• Selectboard: Melanie Jewell 274, Rick Damren 263, Nicholas Alexander 
157 

• School Board: Sharon Frost 168, Penelope Morrell 124, Brian Wedge 56, 
James Smith 25, Stacey Dowling 18 

• Question 3 (Sexual Assault Crisis and Support Center): yes 360, no 46 
• Question 4 (lake protection): yes 356, no 52 
• Question 5 (Spectrum Generations): yes 342, no 60 
• Question 6 (Hospice Volunteers of Waterville Area): yes 373, no 32 
• Question 7 (July Fourth fireworks): yes 195, no 208 
• Question 8 (Subdivision Ordinance): yes 318, no 76 
• Question 9 (Board of Appeals Ordinance): yes 336, no 55 
• Question 10 (Commercial Development Review Ordinance 

phosphorous runoff standards): yes 342, no 50 
• Question 11 (Cemetery Ordinance): yes 306, no 81 
• Question 12 (2023 first-quarter spending): yes 360, no 35 
• Question 13 (prepayment of taxes): yes 377, no 22 
• Question 14 (tax payment date and interest): yes 367, no 27 
• Question 15 (offsetting revenue): yes 391, no 10 
• Question 16 (Planning Board Legal Reserve Fund): yes 337, no 57 
• Question 17 (administrative budget): yes 342, no 57 
• Question 18 (public safety budget): yes 357, no 41 
• Question 19 (Fire & Rescue Communications and Equipment Tower 

Fund): yes 352, no 47 
• Question 20 (paving project): yes 349, no 35 
• Question 21 (public works budget): yes 365, no 20 
• Question 22 (water district creation): yes 249, no 135 
• Question 23 (water system contract negotiations): yes 349, no 49 
• Question 24 (Main Street pedestrian crossing infrastructure): yes 

182, no 218 
• Question 25 (cemetery budget): yes 360, no 38 
• Question 26 (facilities maintenance budget): yes 338, no 62 



2 

• Question 27 (solid waste budget): yes 347, no 45 
• Question 28 (skid steer purchase): yes 350, no 50 
• Question 29 (library budget): yes 285, no 100 
• Question 30 (library mowing contract): yes 318, no 63 
• Question 31 (recreation budget): yes 302, no 87 
• Question 32 (social services budget): yes 349, no 42 
• Question 33 (Senior Resources Committee fundraising): yes 361, no 

24 
• Question 34 (Senior Volunteer Work Program funding): yes 361, no 24 
• Question 35 (dams budget): yes 370, no 21 
• Question 36 (Dams Capital Reserve Account): yes 358, no 28 
• Question 37 (capital reserves): yes 358, no 41 
• Question 38 (debt service): yes 375, no 25 
• Question 39 (trust activities): yes 377, no 25 
• Question 40 (first-responders memorial funding): yes 273, no 125 
• Question 41 (failed departmental budgets funding): yes 357, no 43 

As previously reported to you, two articles failed: Nos. 7 and 24. All other articles 
garnered significant majorities of the vote.  

The total number of ballots cast was 413. That represents 14.6 percent of 
Belgrade’s 2,833 registered voters.  

 


























	April 5, 2022, agenda
	appointment memo
	April 5, 2022, Selectboard agenda and background packet
	March 15, 2022, minutes
	appointments
	appointments
	gradie application_Redacted


	warrant articles
	bpr memo
	MainePERS memo

	library lease
	lease memo
	friends library lease

	TAN
	TAN memo
	bangor bid
	2022 Bid Letter

	andro bid
	camden bid

	nbcc internet memo
	election results memo
	warrant 37




